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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

To the Nfembers of Bteeze Constructions private Limited

Repoft on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis fot Opinion

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial s tatements, our

!7e have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Breeze constructions private Limited('the compaay')' which tomp'i.Jthe Balaoce sheet as at r\{arch 37, 2o25,the Statement of profit andLoss' including the statement of other comprehensive Io.o*., trr. curr, Fbw Statement and thestatement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes io the finaociut ,,r,"rrr.rir, including asunmary of significant accounting poricies and otrr., .*prr."toqy irrlo*"tiorr.
In our opinion and to the best of our informatioa and.according to the explanations giveo to us, theaforesaid Ind AS financial.statemenh give the infomration ,.;;;J by the companies1ct,2013 (,theAct') in the manner so required and givJ a true and fair view in confonnity with the ,..ourrJrrg principlesgeaerally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of-the compa;;;r NIatch 37, zo2|,it ro* includingother compreheasive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

a

{.1fl:{ } {l fl Ii..i.r} g s.j

we conducted oru aud'it of the Ind AS frnancial statements in accordance vrith the Standards on Auditing(SAs)' as specified under.section 143(10) of the-\ct. our responsibirities under those standards are furtherdescribed in the ituditor's Responsib'iliti", fo, the Aud.it of tile Ind ai pinanciat Statements section of ourreport' we are independent of the company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics, issued by the Iastituteof Chartered Accountants oj Iodia tg.rl.t with the ethical r.q;.-1"o that are relevant to our aud.it ofthe financial statements under the prr:r.irioo, of the Act 
"rra 

tt. RJ., trr.r. undet, and we have fi.rlfilledout other ethical rcsponsibilities in iccordance w'ith ,n.r. ,.qJ.-"*l ,.rd th. code of Ethics. we believethat the audit evidence we have e[tnined is sufficient .oa'upfffite to provide a basis for our aud.itopinioa on the Ind AS financirl statemeats.

rnformation other than the Financiar statements and Auditorrs Report Theteon

The company's Board 
3f fle.to,, is responsihle foi the preparation of other iafosnation. The otherinformation compdses the infomratio'irr.iJ.a io the Anaurir.p; but does not include the Ind ASfinaacial statements and our auditor,s report thereon.

out opinion on the Ind AS financial statemeots does not cover the other informadon and we do notexpress any fom ofassurance conclusion thereon.

infornation and, in doing so, consider
responsibility is to read the other
is materially inconsistent rvith the
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financial statements ot o,r knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialy misstated.
I( based oo the work w9 have perfot*ed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinfotnxlisa, we are tequired to i.port that fact.we have asthi.g to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the rnd AS Financial Statements

The company's Board of Dir-ectors is responsible for the matters stated in section l3a(5) of the Act withrespect to the prcparation of these raa as finaacial statements that give a tnre aod fair view of thefiaancial position, financial perfomrance including oth.r.o-pr.h"ori* irr.oro., cash flows and changes inequity of the company in accotdaace with the aicouating principles generally accepted in India, includingthe Indian Accounti'tg staadatcls (Iad AS) specifred uod., ,".tito B3 of tie Act read with [theQemFanies (ndia" Accounti',g Standards) ttrhr,20t5, as amendedl. This rcsponsibility also includesmaintenaoce of adequate accounting t".ori, ia accordance udth the provisioas of-the Act dor safegrardingof the assets of the compaoy and for ptwenting and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection andapplicatioa 
9f approptiate accouoting policies; making judqments and estimates that are reasonable andprudenq and the design, implemeotation and mainterr"i.. oi 

"a.quate 
internal financial controls, that wereoperating effectively for ensuring-the- accuacy and completerr.r, of ,h. accounting records, relevant to thepreparation aod presentation of the Iad AS linancial stitements tu"t giu. a true and fair view and are freeftom matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS finaocial statemeots, managemeat is responsible for assessing the compaoy,sability to coatinue as a golog concem, disclosi.& as applicable, -"rt.er, related to going coocem and usingthe going concem basis of accouoting unless maaagement either intends to liquidate the company or tocease operatioos, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's finaocial reporting process.

Auditods Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a wholeare ftee from material misstatement, whether d1e to fraud or error, aod to issue an auditor,s report thatincludes our opinioa. Reasonable assurance is a hrgh level ofassurao.., brt is rot a guarantee that an auditcoaducted io accordance with SAs will always dete-ct a material -ir*.i"-.o, when it exists. lvlisstatemeotscaa adse ftom &aud or error and are considered material rf, individually or in the aggrcgate, they couldteasonably be expected to influence the ecoaomic decisioos of users takea on the basis of these Ind ASfinaacial statements.

As part of aa audit io accordaace with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintai' professionalscepticism thtoughout the audit We also: 
L --- 

'

' Identi$ aad assess the dsks of material misstatement of the Iad AS financial statements, whether dueto fraud or erroI, 9"t€" aad perfotm aud.it procedure, ,.rpoorirr. to those risks, and obtain auditeviderce that is sufficieat aod appropriate to provide a basis fo, o* opinion. tte ;st of aot detectirga material misstatemeot resulting from &aud L higher thaa ro, oo. resulting from e'or, as fraud mayiavolve collusioo, fiotgery, intentional omissioal, misrepresentations, or the override of intemalcoatrol.

Obtain an undetstandi.g of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X' of the Act, we are also responsiblefor expressing our opinion on whether

IERED
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has adequate internal Frnancial controls system in



place and the operati.g effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountingestimates and related disclosures made by malagemenr.

conclude on the apptopriateness of man4gement's use of 
1!e 

going concem basis of accounting and,based on the audit evidence obtaioed, oih.th", a material ,io."i.irrty exists related to events orconditions that may 6251 5ignificant doubt on the Company's ,birit;; contioue as a going concem. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention io o* 
"rJitor,s 

reportto the telated disclosures in the finaacial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi$out opinion' our cooclusions ate based on the audit evideace obtained up to the date of our auditor,s

::X::;r1'***' 
future events ot conditions may cause the Compaay to cease to continue as a going

Evaluate the overall ptesentation, structure aod content of the Ind AS financial statements, includingthe disclosutes, and whether the Ind AS financial statemeats ,.pr...rr, ,h. undedying transactions andevents in a mannef that achieves fair ptesentation.

we communicate vrith those-chaqed with governaoce regarding among ottrer matters, the planned scope21d timing of the audit and significant 
"oat eoaiogr, t"haiig any signifi.cant deficiencies in internalcontol thatwe identi$ during our audit.

we also provide tlose chatged with govemaoce with a statemeot that we have complied udth releyantethical requirements regprding independeacg and to communicate with them 
"U 

,artloorfrips aad othermatters that may reasonably 5. g[qrrght to bear oo our independence, aad where applicable, related
safeguards.

Repot on Othet Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1" As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report).order,2020 ("the order,), issued by the CentralGovernment of Irrdia in terms of sub-sect]on 
'(tt) oi ,".tioi 143 of the ,{ct, we grve in the"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified'in paragraphs i and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(") wt have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and berief were necessary for the purposes ororr.'u.rait;

(b) In our opinion, Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those botks;

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the stateme.t of othercomprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Stateme,t of 6huog"s - Edt dealt withby this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinio', the aforesaid Ind AS Frnancial.statements comply with the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Compani., griaim Accounting Standards) Rules,2075, as amended;

(e) on the basis of the wrinen representations received from the directors as on xfarch 31,,2025 takenon record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on N{arch 3,1,2025from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 e) of the Act;

*
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(0 with respect to the adequaal of the internal financial contrors over fmancial reporting of thecompany with reference to these Ind AS financial statements 
"oa 

,1" operating effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate Repott in "Annexure B,, to this report;

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations g,iven to us,the company has not paid or provided aty manageral ..rrrrro.ru?on as deFrned by the provisionsof the Section 197 of the Comparues Act, 1013.

(h) lyith respect to the other matters to be included in the ^\uditor,s Report in accordance withRule 11 of the compaaies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20'13, as amended in our opinion and to thebest of our information ani according to the explanations given to us:

i' The company does not have any pending litigations rvhich would impact its financialposition;

ii' The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for whichthere were any material foreseeable lor..r;

in' There were no amounts 
-which 

wete required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

1v

4 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which are mate'ial-either individually or in the aggregate) h;;;." advanced or loanedor invested (either from borrowed fuads or shareJr."mirm or any other sources or lrindof funds) by the company to or io any other p.rro., o, .otity, irr.rrding foreign entity('Intermediaries'),,wlh the understanding whether recorded in writing or1tn.r.1iir., tt r't
the. Intermediary shal! whether, directly ir indirectly lend or invest ii other persons orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by or oo behalf of the Comproy l,UltimateBenefrciaries') or provid e arry go rantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiades;

b) The Management has tepresented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which are material either individualry ot 
T. m.- agregate) i"rr""u".r, ,.."r*J u/ii"company from any qers-on or entity, incrudi"g f#ign"e"iiry 6,r""aing parties,),'with

the understanding, whether recorded in wdfi or o"tt"*ir'.,)iut th."corpu"y'ri^rf
whetler, $..dy or indirectly, lend or invest_in ith., p.rrors o..rrtitro ia."tftJir, 

"frmanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding narry (ultimate Beneficiari.r,) ;;provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaff Jf the 
'Ultimate 

Beneficiaries;

t) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate iothe citcumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that therepresentations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a); Otabove, contain any material misstatement.

v' The company has not paid or declared aoy dividend during the year, accordingly the
provision of section 123 of the Act are not appricable to th. .o-prrry.

vi' The Compana has used a third.party operated accounting software for maintaining its booksof accoung based on e-xamioation of serrrice organisatioJcontrols report (SoC teport), wenoted that the audit trail feature of the said softare *", .orbr"d 
"rrj 

op.rrt.a ,hr:dh;
the yeat for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, dudng the course ofour audiq based on the examination of such report, we did oot come across any instance ofaudit trail feature being tampercd with. Additiona[i, u"r.a oo .*umioruoo ordoC;;;;
the audit trail in respect of such software has b.en recora.a u.rJ pr.served in fu1

1-,, o
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compliance with the requirements of section 12g(5) of the Companies Act, 2o73,io respect
:lm: 9^ld year ended i\{arch 31,202s.o"*.i in respect o'itrr. r*rrr.ia years endedMarch 31' , 2024, in the absence of Soc report for tn. p.riia noJio" 7, 2023 toDecember 31,2023, we are unabre to asseis whether tie audit t 

^l n"', L".., preserved asper the statutory requirements for record retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP

No.
ICAI Fiffn Regn. No:
LIDIN: ZSSzI?_6q
Place: Gurugram
Datq Z\sq\Zs

Bror.BBc368 \
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"Annexute A" to theArrditor's Report of even date to the members of Bteeze constructions privateLimited, on the Ind AS financiar statements fot the yeat ended on Match 3rrzozs.

Based on the audit procedutes perfonned for the pu{pose of expressing an opinion on the true and fairvievr of the Ind AS financial statements of the company and .orrrid..irrg the information and explanationsgiven to us and books of accourlts and other records provided to us d,ring the normal co.rse of audit, wehereby report that:-

i) In respect of Company's Properfy, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, according toInformation and explanation given to us:

") i' The comPany has maintained proper records sloyng full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equilment and relevant details of
right-of_use asset.

ii' Since the Company does not have any intangible asset, hence the reporting under clause 3(, (r) (B) of the order is not applicable to thJcompany

b) Property, Plaot and Equipment were physically verilied by the management during the year.According to the information and e*pla.rrtioos girr.r, to us, no matetial d.i"screpancies were noticed
on such vedfrcation.

t) Based on our examination of relevant records, we report that the title in respect of property, plant
and Equipment disclosed in fioancial statements are held in the name of Compaay at Balance Sheet
date.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not reyalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including righiof-use ,rs.tr) and company does not have anyintangible assets, hence reporting .rod.r ilr,ire 3 (r) (d) of the ord., i, .i* .fpri*ue to the
Company.

E According to inforrnation. & explanations and representations given to us by the management, no
proceedings has been initiated or are q:"di"g against the company roi uourrrg an)/ benami
property under Beaami Transactions lProhibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunier.

n)

(a) Since the company does not have any inventory, hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the order
is not applicable to the company.

(b) Accotding to +: information & explanation given to us, the cornpany has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of { 5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during rhe year,from banks or financialinstitutions on the.basis oFr.J*ity of .or.e.rt assets and hence reporting
under clause 3GXb) of the Order is not applicable.

iii) According to the iqfomation & explanation given to us, the company has not made invesrrnents,
provided any security or guaran_tee ot gtanted any loans or advances in the nature ofloans, securedor unsecured to companies, frrms and limi-ted liability partnerships or other parties covered.Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (ur) (r) to 1i1 or th. ori., are not ,ifu..ut" to tt 

"Company.

'CHARTERED

ACCOUNIANTS

r) There are no loans, investrnents, guarantees and security in respect of which provision of sectjon
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 ate applicable and accodirrgly tt. ,.qoirement to report
on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. o-'



v) According to the informatign & explaoation given to us, company has not accepted any deposit oramounts which are deemed to be depositr. H.rr.., teporting under clause :1"y 
"r tt. order is notapplicable.

vi) Maintenance of cost recotds has not been specified by the central Government under sub-section(1) of section 148 of the companies act, zot: for tt e business activities carried out by theCompany' Flence, reporting undei clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

"ii) In respect of statutory dues,

4 According to the records gf -!h. company, 
-the- 

company is generally regular in depositrng
undisputed statutory dues including prorrid..rt fund, empioye.r' strte insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax,-service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value rdd.d tr*, cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable rn
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, salei tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax
and cess v/ere outstanding, as at N'farch 31,2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b) Accotding to the records and the information and the explanation given to us, the company does
not have any disputed dues as on N'Iarch 31,,2025 in respect of goods and services t^*,'pro.rid.rrt
fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, sales tax, serwice ta-x", dury of customs, drrty'o6.*.ir.,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues.

According to the information & explanation given to us, there u/ere no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income duung the yearin the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196,! (43 0f 1g67)

E j'ccording to the in-formation & explanation given to us, the Company has not taken any loans or
other bortowings from any Bank ot Financial institution or any government authority. Hence
reporting under clause 3(tg(d of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the informalron & explanation given to us, the Company has not been declaredwillful defaulter by any bank or financiar insutution or any governme.rir,rthoriry.

c) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not taken any term loan
during the year and there are no outstandrn[ term loans at the beginning of the year'and hence,
reporting under clause 3(o)O of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the inforrnation & explanation given to us, on an overall examioation of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the year for long-terrn purposes by the Company.

E The company does not have any associate, ioint venture or subsidi ary company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i*)G) of the order is not appricable to the company.

0 The company does nlt have any associate, joint veoture or subsidiary company. Accordingly,
reportiog under clause 3(i.x0 of the order is not applicable to the company.

a) According to the information & explanation glven to y.,-1. company has not raised rnoney by wayof rrutial public offer .or further public olfer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3("Xr) of the order is not appliiable.

",,0

ix)

lr)

o



b) Company has not made any preferential allotment or private pracement of share or convertibledebentures' Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(")G) or th" oid". is not applicable.
xr)

(a) To the best of ow knowledge and According to the information & explanarion given to us, nofraud by the Company or any fraud on the Colpany has been noticed or reported during the year.Accordingly, the ptovision of clause 3(*) G) t 1t) oi tt e order is not applicaire.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (1 2) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditors/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information & explanation given to us, oo whistle blower complaints has been
teceived during the year by company.

xli) In out opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not aNidhi company. Hence the provision of clause 3(*ii) (4 to (c) oithe o.d.. i, 
"ot .ffLuute to the

company.

*iii) According to the information & explanations given to us, all transactions defined under Section
188 of the Act are in compliance with Section 188 and details of these transactions are properly
disclosed in the Financial Statements. Further, Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company and acco:dingly the requirement to report under clause 3(xiii) of tt . oia^"r insofar it is
related to secrion 177 of the act is not applicable to the company.

xtv) According to the information & explanations given to us,

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system cornmensruate with the size
and the narure of its business.

&) !7. have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

:sr) In out opinion the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
petsons conflected with its directors as referred under provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act,2013.

E In our opinion and according to tle rnforma,tion & explanation given to us, the company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserves Bank of India ict, 1934.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(x-vr) (a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

b) Company is not engaged in any Non -Banking Financials or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the tequirement to report on clause 3("r) O) is not applicable to"the company.

t) The Company is not a Core Investrnent Company as defined in regulations made by Reserve Bankof India' Accordingly, the requirement to ieport in clause :(i,i)(c) is not applicable to the
Company.

d) The company has only one Core Investrnent Company as a part of the Group. Hence, the
requirement to report in clause 3(xvr)(d) is not applicable to the .-opu.ry.

xvi)

CHARTERED



"n)

*"iii)

xix)

The Company has incuffed cash losses dr'.i.g ttre crurent financial year and in the immediately
preceding 5,rs1cial ear of 876.13 Lakhs and 770.33 Lakhs tespectively.

Thete has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during t1e year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report irr clause 3(*riii) is not applicabL to the 6o*pro:y.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dz1ss 6f lgalization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other infomratioo accompanpflg the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Managem.ot plror"".ri based on out examination of the
evidence_ supporting the assumptions, nothing has corre to our attention, which causes us to
lelieve that aoy materid uncertainty exists as oa the date of the audit report indicating that
9"-qTI is not capable of mee '.g its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 

"nd"whe,they fall due within a period of one year from the bala.c-e sheet date. W'e, however, state that this is
not an assuraoce as to the-future viabfity of the Company. We firther state that our reporting is
based oa the facts up to the date of the audit report aod we neither glve any go"rrrr,.i ,ro, uoy
assuraoce that all liabilities falling due urithio a period of one year fromlhe balan"ce sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as aad when they fall due.

According to the information & explaoations given to us, compaoy is not required to make any
expenditure under corporate social responsibility under proviiion of section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(**) (r) & (b) of the oider is not applicable to rhe company.

This clause of the otdet is applicable to consolidated Furancial starements. The audit report under
reference is on the standalone financial statements of the company. Consequently, clause (:o,) of
paragraph of the order is not applicable to the company.

xx)

x.\1)

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co

No.521269

;,,

ICAI Firm Regn. No: 01 0630N/N500036
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rlace: uuflrgram
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"Annexure - Bt, to the Auditotsr Repott

Repott on the Intetnal Financial Controls undet Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of theCompanies Act,2073 (3.the Actrr)

In coniunctioD with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Comp a.ly as of and for the year
ended tr'{arch 3'1,2025' we have audited the intemal financial conrrols o.,.. fr.ruo.iol reporting of Breeze
Constructions Private Limited.

Management's Responsibility fot Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
intemal financial controls based on the interoal co.rtrol orr., fii-.irl reporting cdtetia"established by theC93n'"f 

-.gnsidenog 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note oa Audit

of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia ('ICAI). These responsibiJities include $1 deilgn, impiementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial conftols that were operating effectivef 661 is,,ri.g the orde;y and efficient conduct of
its business, includi'g adhetence to company's policies, the safeguariing of its;ssets, thcfrevention and
detection of ftauds anf erro11,.th; ,..*^"y and complet.o.r, of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial inforrnation, as requireJ under the Companies 71c{ ZOtl.

Auditots' Responsibility

our responsibility is to a(press ao opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Fioaocial Controls over Financial Rcporting (the "Guidaace Note') issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and d..-.d to be prescribed under section 14300) of the
Companies Act'2073, to the extent applicable to ao audit of internal financial controls, both isiued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perforrn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate iaternal 6orocial controls over irnancial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

lur aydit involves performing ptocedutes to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
qnancial controls system ovet Fraancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our'audit of interaal
financial controls over finaocial.reporting iscluded obtaining ao ood.ist orting of intemal financial controls
o-r'et financial reporting-, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, id testing and evaluating the
design_and o,perating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. ThJprocedures selected
depend or the auditot's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud oreuor.

We believe that the audit evidence rxre have obtained is suffi.cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system orer'fi.rrrr.i"t reportlog.

Meaning of rnternal Financial conttols over Financial Reporting ,

A company's iotemal fiaancial control over fuuncial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting *d th. prepaation If f-"o.ia statements for
lxtemal pu{Poses in accordance with generally 

"...pt"d 
,..ooot.g pdnciples. A company,s intemal

financial conttol over financial teporting includes those policies aoipioc.dLes that (1) pertain to the
mainteoance of tecords that, in reasonable dstail, acc;ately aod fai4y reflect the'transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the comp arly, Q) provide ..uro.rrbL assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit prepantion of financial statertreots in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, aod that receipts and expeoditures of the company are being *""a. oiy io 

"'".ora*.e with
authodzations of management aod directors of the compaoy; a"d (3J provide reasonable assu{ance

*



regarding preveotion ol timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company,sassets that could have a tnaterialeffect on the Ind AS financiai statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intetnal Financial controls ovet Finaacial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contols over financial reporting including thepossibility of collusion o1 impryper management overide of coatrols, material misstatements due to erroror fraud may occrE and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
conftols over financial reporting to futue periods are-subject to the risk that the intemal financial control
over financialt p"ai"q.Tay become_inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Ia out opinion, the Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal Frnaacial controls system
over financial reporting and such ioternal financial coatrols ovet financial r.portiog were operating
effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the intemal control over financial ,epo.tiog .iit.ri^ established

!r $e lgmpany consideri'lg the essential compoaents of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For and on behalf of
ARG &

r\{embership No. 521

IC{I Firm Rego. No: 010630N/N500036
UDIN: Z55zlL 6q SfnabBC36S \
Place: Gurugram
Date: 21\gq\a5



Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201DI2005FTC135476

Regd office Ad&ess: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz cinema compler, New Delhi - 11fi)55
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) l)ropern, Plant and Fiquipmcnr
(b) (iaprtal rvork-in-ptogrcss
(c) Financials.\sscts

(i) ()thcr liinancials .\sscts

(d) \rxr currcllt tax asscts (net)

Cufrent assets

(a) Financial .\sscts

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

ft) ()thcr (-urrcor .\ssets

EQUITYAND LTABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

1b) Other Equiw

Liabilites
Curent liabilities

(a) Financial Uabilities
(i) Borrovirnp;s

(ii) Trade payables

-Total outstan,li.g dues of micro enterprises and small enterpdses
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other thao micro enterprises and small enterprises

(rii) { )ther frnancial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Current tax liabilities (i.,let)

3

4

5

6

10,377.21

5,123.98

15.36

1 86.1 0

10,377.21

5,123.98

1.50

0.05

1.50

0.21

7

8

4.08

104.57
15,704.20 15,611.55

I r5,000.00

(2,280.e0)

2,773.00

25.77

0.22

179.5.+

6.41

0.13

15,000.00

(1,404.63)

I,500.00

13.97

0.41

236.43

265.37

10

11

t2
l3
l4

15,704.20 15,611.55

Summary of Nlaterial .{,ccounting Policies 2

"lhe accompanying notes forms ao integral part of these financial statements

Based on our audit report of even date amached

Iior and on behalfof
ARG&Co.LLP
(,hartered -\ccountants
(F'RN: 0l

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Breeze Constructions Private Umited

Agarwal
(Director)

I)l\:081

HARIER
UNIANI$

Kunal

\[rm

Plirce : Gurugram
D*e: 21.04.25

*l Verma
(Director)

DIN : 08394289

Sneh Mahaian
(C<lmpanv Secretan)

#p,#
52

Sanieev Adya
(Chicf Financial ()fficcr)

h

Ag:t3IMetch
w25

As.r 3l March
NA

Note No-Prfliculare



Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201D12005PI C13547 6

Regd office Address: lE Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz cinema complex, New Delhi - 110055
Statement of Profit and [,oss for the year ended 31 Mrich 2025

I. Revenue
( )thcr Incomc

Total Income

II. Expenses
Finance costs

C)ther expenses

Total Expenses

III. Profit / (Loss) before tax (I-II)

fV. Tax expense
Earlier Year'I'ax --\diustment

V. Profit / (Loss) after tax (tII-fV)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit ot loss

Total comprehensive profit/Qoss) for the year

Eaming per equity share ({)
Basic

l)iluted
Ratio .\nalvsis

15 0.51 0.2-+

0.51 0.24

16

1,1

202.11

674.53

247.66

522.9'.L

876.64 770.57

18

l9

(876.13)

0.14

(770.33)

0.12

(770.4s\

(0.23)

(0.23) (0.20)

(0.20)

20
Summary of llaterial .\ccouoting Policies 2

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements

Based on our audit report ofeven date attached

For and on behalf of
ARG&Co.tLP
Charteted ,\
/F'RN: 0l

Kunal

l\Iembers No.:521

Place : Gurugram
Date: 21.04.25

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Breeze Constructions Private Limited

@irecto$
DIN :08144980

Sanieev Adya
((.hief Financial ( )fficer)

Ravinder Verma
([)irector)

DIN : 0839"1289

Sneh Mahaian
(Compant Sccretan)

Agarwal

RTERED

)"

Note No.P.rticuLrB For year
3l M.rch 2025 ll]0'fratch2024

For the year

(n62,) 070.4\

6,"{,ry



Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201D12005PTC85476

Regd OIEce Address: 1E Jhandewalar Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 11fi)55
Cash Flow Staremetrr for the year ended 31 March2025

ln

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(l.oss) bcfrrrc ta,x

Adjustment for:
Interest Income

-ltllowance / wnte offs of financial and non-financial assets and provisi,
lntcrcst cxpense

Opetating profrt/(loss) before working capital changes
Adjustment for:
Movement in Working capital:
Incrcasc/([)ccrcase) in trade pavables

Incrcasc/(l)ccrcase) in ()ther (.urrent Liabilities
lncreasc/([)ecrease) in ()thcr liinancial l.iabilitcs
(lncrcase)/l)ecrease in non currcnt ttx asscts

(lncrcasc)/I)ccrease in ()ther (lurrcnt .\ssets

Net cash flow (used in) operating activities
'I'axcs Paid

Net cash llows used in operating activities

B) CASH FLOW FROM TNVESTTNGACTTVTTIES
(lncrease)/Decrease in fixed deposits

Interest Received

Net cash flow (used ia) investing activities

c) cAsH FLOW FROM FTNANCTNG ACTTVITTES
Increase in Share Capital

Proceeds from Short term borrouring:r

Interest.paid

Net cash f,ow (used in) generated from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the t,ear

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end ofthe vear

Net increase/(dectease) in Cash and cash Equivalents

56.37

202.11, 247.66

(618.16) (s22.8r)

11.6r (0.s2)

(2s8.93) 262.66

1 35.30

0.16

(137.e0) (6.11)

(\003.24) (131.48)

0.01 Q44)
(1,003.23) (1i1.44)

0.51

4.75

0.02

0.51 4.77

(876.13)

(0.s1)

(770.45)

(0.02)

1,273.00

(2se.00)

378.00

(248.27)

1,014.00 t29.73

11.28

4.08

15.36

3.06

4.08

1.02

11.28 3.06

CHARTERED

& C

yca( y€arPerticuhn



Bteeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201DII005F{I C13547 6

Regd Office Addtess: lE Jhandewalan Extensioa, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055

Cash Flow Statemetrt for the year ended 31 March 2025

Other disclosures reouired bv Ind-AS 7:

ir Liabilities from actrvrtres

Balance as on l April 2024
(lash lrlows
Transacdon cost adiustment
Intercst cxpenscs (excluding r.nterest accrued but not duc)

(Jompulsorilv (,rxrvertible Dcbenturcs issued against

borrou'urg

Intcrest Paid

Balance :rs ou 31 l0'larch2025

1,601. r 3

1,213.00

202.11

(2se.00)

2,817.24

Balance as oo 1 April 2023
(lash Flows

Transaction cost adiustment

Interest expenses (excluding interest accrued but not due)

Compulsorilv Convertible Debenrures issued against

borrowing

lnterest Paid

Balrence as on 31 March2024

(B) Chaages in Uabilities arising from Investing activities
Other than those discbsed in Cash flow statement, there is no non-cash rnovement in investing acnvities

1,223.74

378.00

241.66

(248.21)

1,601.13

The accompaoyinfa notes fofins an integral part of these financial statements

Based on our audit report of even date attached

F-or and on behalf of
ARG&Co.LLP
Chartered
(FRN:01

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDrrectors
Bteeze Constructions Private Limited

a)v
Umesh Chandra Agarwal

@o

Kunal

No.: 521

Place l Gurugram
Date: 21.04.25

CHARIERE D T
* (Director)

DIN:

Sanieev Adya
(Chief Ftnancial Officer)

Ravinder Verma
(Director)

I)lN : 0839,1289

Sneh Mahaian
((-ompanv Sccrctan)

P.rticuf.rr Norrcurelrt CuatrtBormingc
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Breeze Consttuctions Private Limited
CIN: U45201DI2005PT C135 47 6

Regd Office Address: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 3lM.,,ct.202s

I Corporateinformation

Breeze Constructions Private Limited is a companv incorporated under the provision of Companies Act, 1956
domiciled rn India. The objective of the company is to undenake real estare development.

2 M.aterial acco unting po licies

a) Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements ('financial statements) of the Company have been prepared in accordance u/ith
the Indian Accounting Standards fterernafter referred to as the 'Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Colporate Affairs
(l\'fCA) uader Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act) read with the Compaaies (Ind.ian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015, as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III
to the'Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial statemenrs.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going coflcern basis in accordance with accounting
pnnciples generally accepted in India. Fwther, the standalone Enancial statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis excePt for certain fioancial assets, financial liabilities, derivative Frnancial instruments and share based

Pavments which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting polioes. The changes in accounting
policies are explained in note 2(aa).

The lurancial statements for the vear ended 31 Ntarch 2025 werc authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 -0 1-2025.

The standalone hnancial statements are presented in Rupees and all values are rouoded to the nearest lakb except
rvhen otherwise indicated.

b) Cutrent and non-curtent classification

The CompanY presents assets and Labilitres in the balance sheet based on current/non-cuffent
classification. An asset is classified as crurenr u,hen it is:

' Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
. Expected to be realized within t'uzeh'e months after the reporung period, or
'Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used ro sertle a liabilin for at least rwelve
months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-cuffent.

A liabilin'is classified as current when:
.It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
. It is held primarill' for the purpose of trading

' It is due to be settled $1th.rn trvelve months after the reportrng period, or
'There is no uncondiuonal right to defer the settlement of the habrhrl for ar least nlrlve months after the reporting
penod. The Companr- classiEes all other liabiliues as non-current

Hc TA RE

tNTAI'IT$

i-\



Breeze Constructions private Limited
CIN: U45201D 12005 pT C1iS47 6

Regd Office Address: lE Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 3lMarch202s

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and theg reilizattonin cash and cash
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabfities are classihed as non-current assets and liabilities.

c)Borrowing costs

Borrorving costs directly attributable to the acquisiuon and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of ume to get readv for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that the Company rncurs in connection wrth the borrorving of funds. Borrowrnt cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adiustment to the borrowing costs.

d)Ptoperty, plant and equipment

Re eugni tio n and i nit ial m easa rem e nt

Properg'', plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Company had elected to measure all of its properry, plant and eq ripment at the previous GAAp carryiog
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capiteliTation criteria are met and directli
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the iotended use. Any uade discotrnt and rebares
are deducted in arnving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amouflt o!
recognised as a seParate asseq as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company. When significant parts of plant aad equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific usefirl lives. Iikewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised rn the carrpng arnount of the plant and equipment as a replacemeot if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and
loss as incured. The Company identifies and detetmines cost of each component/ part of the ,rr., ,.p"rr,ely, if the
component/ part have a cost which is sigruEcant to the total cost of the asset and has usefi.rl life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset.

Subsequent measmment (depnciation and rcefzt liuu)

Properry, plant and equipment are subsequentlv measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if aor. Depreciation on properrl, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis or,,er
the estimated useful Iives of the assets as follows:

.A,sset category* Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act,2013
(in years)

(in years)

Estimated
useful life

Burldrngo

ACCOUNTNTS *

20-60 60

cri



Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201D12005 PT C1i547 6

Regd Office Address: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements fiot the year ended 3ll'darch2lll

Asset category* Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act,201il
(in years)

(in years)

Estimated
useful life

Plant and machinen 10-15 t5

Computers and data processing units

- Sen'ers and netrvorks
- Desktops, laptops and other devices

Furniture and Fxtures
Office equipment

5-10 10
Vehicles

f 5

8-10 8-10

The Ct-rmpany, based on technical assessment made bv technicd expert and maoagement estimate, depreciates certain
items of buildtng, firniture and fixtures and plant and equipment over estimated usefrrl lives which are differenr from
the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management belier.es that these estimated
usefirl lives are realistic and reflect fat approxrmation of the period over which the assets are likelv to be used.

The residual values, useful lirrs and method of deprecradon are rer-iewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectiveh. if appropriate.

De-re;ognilion

An item of property. plant and equipment and an1, significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no. furure economic bene6ts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference berween the net disposal proceeds afld the carrving amount of the asset) s
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asser is de-recognised.

6

3

6

J

e) Taxes

Curent iruome tax'

Tax e,xpense recogtized in starement oi proht ancl loss comprises tire sum of deterred tax and current ta\ e\cept the
ones recognized in other compreherrsire rncome or directh- irr equin-.

Current income tax assets and liabiliues are measured at the amounr expected to be recol'ered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax pavable in respect of ta-xable income for the lear and is

\r_

\*
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Breeze Consttuctions Private Limited
C IN: U45201D I2Ui,SPII CLSS 47 6

Regd OfEce Address: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMartcha1}S

cornputed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside
statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity)' Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undedying transacrion either in OCI or directly
in equrty' Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the ta-x retums with respect to situations rn which
applicable tax regulations are subject to inteqpretation and establishes provisions where appropnate.

In the sinrations where ooe or more units/undertakingin the Company are entitled to a rax holiday under the Income-
tax Acg 1961, no deferred tax (asset or liability) s recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse
during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity's gross total income is subject to the deduction
during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary d.ifferences which reverse after the tax holiday
period is recognized in the year in which the temporaq, differences originate. However, the Company ,.rt i.t,
recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient furure taxable income will be availags
against which such deferred tax assets cao be realized. For recognition of defered taxes, the temporarl differences
which originate first are considered to reverse fust.

Defemd nx

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences berween rhe tax bases of assets and
liabilities aod their carrying atnounts for finaocial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable rcmporary differences, excepr

In respect of taxable temporafi; differences associated with iryestments in subsidiaries, associates aod interests in
loint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporar)' differences can be controlled and it is probable thar
the temporary differences v'ill not reverse in the forese."Ll" furur".

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deducuble temporan' differences, the carn forward of unused tax credits
and anr unused tax losses. Def-erred tax assets are recognised io the extent rhat it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductrble temporan: differences and the carn' for*iard of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be udlised.

The carn'ing amount of deferred tax assets is revierved at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
lorrger probable that sufficient raxable profit rvill be arailable to allorv all or part of the deferred rax asset to be utilised.
L'nrecogrused deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that fuure taxable prohts r,-rll allorv the deferred ta-\ asset to be recor.ered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilrues are measured at the tax rates that are expected to applv in the t-ear when the asset
is realised or the liabilitv is settled, based on tax rates (and tax larvs) that have been enacted or substantir-elr, erracred
at the reponing date.

Deferred tax relaung to items recogruse<1 oursidc statemcnt oiproht arrd loss is recogrusecl outsrclc sraternenr eIprolit
and loss (erther in other comprel'rensir-e tncome or in equn). Deferred rax items ar. ...og.rir.d in correlarior-r r() rire
underlving rransaction either in OCI or duectlr in ec1uin,.

/NIANTS

L
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Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201D1200s PT C1i547 G

Regd Office Address: 1E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements fot the year ended 31March2025

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legallr enforceable right exists to set off current tax assers
against current ta-x liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable enrifi and the same taxation authori*.

Sales tax/ value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition of assets ot on incuring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax/ value added taxes/Goods and senices tax paid,
except:

\\hen the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sen'ices is not recoverable from the taxation authoritv, in whuch
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acqusirion of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
apphcable.

\{hen receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax rncluded.

The net arnount of tax recoverable from, or pavable to, rhe taxation authorifi' rs rncluded as part of receivables or pay'ables
in the balance sheet.

Q Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturin' of three months or less, rvhich are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the PurPose of the statement of cash florvs, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank over&afts as they are considered an integral part of the
Companv's cash management.

g) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized onll rvhen there is a present obligation, as a result of past evenrs, and it rs probable that an
outflow of resources embodr-ing economic benefits rvill be required to setrle the obligauon and rvhen a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligauon can be made at the reporting date. Provisions are discounted to ther present
l-alues, where dre dme ralue of moner is material, using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, rvhen appropflate, the
risks specific to the liabdrn'. \\hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of ume is
recognised as a tinance cost.

\\hen the Companv expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reirnbr.usement is recognisecl as a

separate asset, but onlr rvhen the rermbursement is virtualh certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and. loss net of anl reimbursemeot.

Onerous contracts

If the Cofi]pant has a col]tract that is onerous. the presellr obligati<-,n under the cofltracr is recosnrsed a'cl measured
as a provision. Florver-er, before a separate pror-isron [or an onerous contract is esrablisl-re<]. tl-re Cr:nrpapr. recognises
ant- imparrment loss that has occurred on assets dedrcated to that contract.

*
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 3lMarch202s

An onerous contract is a cootract under rvhich the unavoidable costs (i.e. the costs that the Company cannot avoid
because i.t has the conftact) of meedng the obl-igations under the contract exceed the ecooomic benefits expected to
be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exrting flrom the contract,
u'hich is the lor'"rr of the cost of fulfilling it and anr compensation or penalties arisrng from failure to fulFrl it.

These estimates are rer-ierved at each reportrng date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilrq, is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which wrll be conhrmed only bv furure evenrs not whollv within the conrol of the Company;
or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflo'*, of resources rvill be required ro
settle the obligauon or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligauon cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except rvhen realisation of income is virruallr, certain, related
asset is disclosed.

h) Financial insttument

A financial instrument is anv contract that Sfves rise to a financial asset of one entir_v and a financial liability or equiw
instrument oI another entin.

1) Financial Assets

I nitial recognitio n and mea.rurzmen I

Financial assets are classified, at rnitial recognition, as subsequentlv measured at amortised cost, falr value through
other comprehensir.e income (OCI) and farr value through profit or loss.

The classification of Enancial assets at initral recognition depends on the Enancial asser's contractual cash florv
characteristics and the Companr''s business model for managing them. \ttth the exception o[ trade receir.ables that
do not cootain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical exped.ient, the
Companv rmtiallv measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, net o[ transacdon costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a sigruficant financmg
comPonent or for rvhich the Company has applied the pracucal expedient are measured ar rhe rransaction price
determined under Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts rvrth customers'. Refer to the accounting pohcies in section
2.2(i) 'Rer.enue from contracts with customers'.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or farr r-alue through OCI. it needs to
gl\:e flse to cash t-lot's that are 'solelt'pavments of principal and interest (SPPD'on the pflnctp21l amounr ourstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrumenr le\-el.

t
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The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows' The business model determines whether cash flows will result ftom collecting contracrual cash
flows, selling the Enancial assets or borh.

S a bseq u e nt me alrlren e n t

i' Financial assets carried at amortized cost - a financial asser is measured at amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:
r The asset is held withln a business model whose objectl'e rs ro hold assets tbr collecting contractual cash flows;

and

' Contractual terms of the asset gtr-e rise on specified dates to cash flows that are soleh.pavments of principal

After rnitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequentlr. measured at amortised cost using the effective
lnterest rate (EIR) method.

Investments in equit,v instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Inr-estments rr equq.
tnstruments of subsidiaries, joint ventwes and associates are accounted for at cosr in accordance with Ind AS 27
'Separate Financial Statements'.

ll.

iii' Investments in othet equity instruments - Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all oih.r .q*.y instruments, the Company rrrakls an
irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by insrrumeni basis, to classifr the ,rrne Lirh., 

^, 
,,

fair value-througt other comprehensive income (FVOCD or fair value through profit o, lois 6-VTpL). Amounts
presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferre-d to .,^,.rn..,t of profit and loss.
Howeveq the Companv transfers the cumulative garir or loss wiitrin equiq'. Dividend on such investments are
recognised in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend cleady t pr.r..rt, a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment.

iv' Investments in mutual funds - Investments in murual funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL).

Fair value changes on instruments meastued at FVTPL is recognised in the Sratement of Profit and [,oss unless the
Companv has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fau value changes on instruments measured at FVOCI
are recognised in OCI. Amounts recogrused in OCI are not subsequentlv reclassified to the Statement of profit and
Loss.

D e-re rugn i lio n oJf na n cia/ ar e tt

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a Frnancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarilY derecognised (i.e. remored from the Companr's standalone balance sheeQ ,,vhen:

r I'he .gl-rts to receir-e cash t-l.*'s tiom the asset har-e exp'ed: or
o T'he (-ornpan! has tfansfc'rred its rig;l-rts to receir-e cash florvs from tire asset or h:rs assurned a1 .bligatio. to pa\. the

received cash t'lorvs in tull $rthout material d.elar to a third parn' under a 'pass-through' arrangemelt; and either (a)
the Compant' l-ras transt'erred substanrralh' ali tle risks ani ,e..ards o[ tlie asset, .rr'qt 1 ,t,. torrrp^.r, has nerther
transt'erred nor retaincd subsrantrallr'all the risks and rervards oIthe asset, bur has transt-erred conrr'l o[tire asset.

c
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Contrnurng involrrment that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
origrnal carflring amount of the asset and the maximum arnount of consideration thar the Company could be required
to repal'.

Inpaiment ol financial atvtt

In accordance with Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', the Company applies expected cred.it loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Compan), 1n
accordance with the contract and dl the cash flows that the Company expects ro receive, discounted at the triginal
effectirc interest rate, '*'ith the respective risks of default occurring as the rveights. \Xhen estimating the cash flLrvs,
the Compant is required to consider:

' All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment aod extension) orcr the expected life of the assets.r Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements rhat are rntegral ro the contractual terms.

(t) Trade rurciaab/et

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments,,
whrch requires measurement of loss allowance at an arnount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Ufetime
expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected Iife
of a Frnancial instrumenr.

(ii) Other fnan,ia/ atett

In respect of its other financial assets, the Compan)'assesses if the credir risk on those financial assets has increased
srgnificandy since iniual recognition. If the credit nsk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Companv measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to l2-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to rhe lifeume expected credit losses.

\\hen makirrg this assessment, the Compant uses the change in the risk of a default occurdng o\-er rhe expected life
of the financial asset' To make that assessment, the Companr. compares the nsk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date u'ith the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as ar the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable informauon, thar is available rvithout undue cosr or effort, that
is rndlcatfi'e of sigruficant increases in credit dsk since rnitial recogn-rtion. The Company assurnes that the credit risk
on a financial asset has nor increased srgnificantly since rnitial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit nsk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Initia/ rctognitirtn and meuyrcmenl

Fioancial liabrllties are classified, at irutial recogrution, as Enancial habihties ar iarr r.alue through profit or loss, loans
and borron'ings and pavables, net of directlv artributable uansacrion costs.

e
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The Companr's financial liabiliues include trade and other pavables, securifi, deposits, loans and borrowings and
other financial liabrhties rncluding bank or,'erdrafts and financial guaranree conrracts.

Suhequent meaJurcmeilt

Subsequent to initial recognition, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
belorv:

I-oan.r and borrowingt

After rnidal recogrution, interest-bearing loans and borrov,ings are subsequentlv measured at amonised cost using
the EIR method' Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss w-hen the liabilitres are derecognised
as rvell as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated br taking into accoult any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of rhe EIR. The EIR amortisarion is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

F i na n ;ia / gaantn tee co n tra;tt

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a pa\ment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs bccausc the specifred parrr- fails to make d payr11g111 when due in accordance vrith the terms of a debt
instn:ment' Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial l-iabiliw at the time the guarantee is issued at
fat value, adiusted for transacrion costs that are duectlv amributable ro the issuance of the guaranree. Subsequeorlv,
the habilin is measured at the hgher of the arnouot of expected loss allowance determined as per imparrment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the arnount recogrused less cumulative amortization.

De-recognition o.[.linuncial /iabiliriet

A Enancral liabihn'is de-recogrused rvhen the obligation under the tiabfin'rs discharged or cancelled or expires. \Ihen
afl exlstlng hnancial habrhn is replaced bv another from the same lender on substantially drfferent terms, or the terms
o[ an existing tiabilrn- are substantialh' modified, such an exchange or mod.ificatiorl is treated as rhe de-recognrtron of
the ongrnal liabditv and the recognition of a nerv liabilin. The drfference in the tespective carning amounrs is
recognised in the starement of profit and loss.

3) Reclassification of financial instruments

The Compan'r' determines classificadon of financial assets and Iiabiliues on uriual recognition. After irutial recognition,
no reclassificatton is made for Ftnancial assets which are equin'instruments and financul liabilitres. For financii assets
['hich are debt mstruments, a reclassihcation is made oJ-1 if there is a change in rhe business model for managrng
those assets. (--hanges to the business model are expected to be rnfrequ.r',i. 'rn. Companr.'s senior manag.;.ni
determrnes change ir.r the business model as a result of external or internal changes .thi.i-, 

^.. sig'itica,t to the(--ompanr''s operations. Strch cl'rarrges are er-ident to esternal parties. .\ charge ,, tir. b,rsrrr.ss model occurs rvherr
the Compani eirher begrns or ceases tc, perform an acdvin' that is signif,r.^'rr, u', its operatious. If the Companr.
reciassities financial assets, rt applies the reclassification prospecrn'elr fiorn the reclassihcarion date rvhich is the firsr

a
*



Breeze Constucfions Ptivate Limited
CIN: U45201DI2005PT C1iS47 G

Regd Office Address: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements fot the year ended 3\March20ZS

day of the immediatelr- ne-xt reporting period follow-ing the change in business model. The Companv does not restare
anv p1s1:i6tl5lt'recognrsed gains, losses (includrng impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of financial insttuments

Financial assets and Iinancial liabilrties are offset and the net arnounr is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currentll'enforceable legal rlght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intentioo to settle on a ner basis, to
realise the assets and senle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

i) Fair value measurement

The Compan): measures financial instruments such as derivative iflstruments erc. at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that'*'ould be received to sell an asset or paid ro transfer a liabi]iw in an orde;y transaction
berween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a Iiability is measured using the
assumptions that market parucipants would use when pricing rhe asset or liabflrtt', assuming rhat market participants
act in theL economic best interest. A farr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's abilirr to generate economic benefits bv usrng the asset rn rts highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its hrghesr and besr use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the cLcumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair r-alue, ma-ximising the use of relevant obsen able inputs and mirumising the use of
unobservable rnputs.

All assets and liabiliues for which far value is measured or disclosed in the financial starements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, descnbed as follorvs, based on the lotest lercl rnput that is sigmficant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

' Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market pnces in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

' Level 2 - \raluation techniques for which the lor','est level input that is sigruhcant to the fair value measurement
is directlr or rndirecdr obsen able.

' Lerel 3 - \'aluation techniques for rvhich the lov'est level input that is srgnihcant to the fair value measuremenr
rs unobsenzble.

For assets and l-iabilities that are recogrused in the standalone financial sratemenrs on a recurring basis, the Compan'
determines rvhether transfers have occurred benveen lerels in the hi.erarchr- br- re-assessrng catigonsarion (based on
the los-est lerel input that is significant to the far value measuremenr as a whole) ar rhe enJ of each reporring period.

Esternal valuers are intoh'ed for valuation of sigruFrcant assets, such as properties and unquoted Frnancial assets and
significant habil-rties, such as contingent consideration. Inr.olvemenr of external raluers is decided upon annuallr bv
the management. \'aluers are selected based on market knovleclge, reputation, independence and rvhether
protessronal standards are maintained.

For the PurPose of t-air ralue disclosures, the Company has derermined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the rlature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabihrr- and the lelel of rhe f'au value hierarchl as explained above.
'I'his ntlte summarises accountrng policv for farr ra]ue. Other farr value related disclosures are g1\'en in rhe relet.ant
notes.



i) Revenue fiom conttact or services with customer and othet streams of revenue

Breeze Constructions Private Limited
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Regd Office Addtess: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements fot the year ended 3l}trarch2025

o Disclosures for valuation methods, srgnificant estimates and assumptions (note 4 and 36)

o Quantitative disclosures of fair r.alue meas,rement hierarchr. (note 36).

. Investment in unquoted equitr, shares (note 68).

o Invesrment properties (nore 4).

o Financial instruments (mcluding those carried at amortised cosr) (note 36 and37).

Revenue from contracts vith customers is recognised rru-hen control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to u'hich the Companv expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or sen'ices. The Companv has generally concluded that it is the priocipal in its revenu. ,r.^rrg.-..rr.
because it q''picaily controls the goods and sen'ices before transferring them to the cusromers.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to reyenue from contracts
with customers are provided in note 2.2(bb).

i. Revenue ftom Contracts with Customers:
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, takng into account contracrually
defined terms of pay'ment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and is net of rebates
and discounts. The Companv assesses its revenue affangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangemenrs.

Revenue is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the exrent that it is probable that the economic benefits
rvill flor*' to the Companv and the rer.enue and cosrs, if applicable, can be measured reliablv.

The Compan5 has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue ftom contracts with cusromers' to recogruse
revenue in the standalone Enancial statements. The Companr satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue or.er time, if one of the followrng criteria is met:

a) The customer srmultaneouslv receives and consurnes the benefits provided bv the Companv's performance as the
Companv performs; or

b) The Companv's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

c) The Companl''s performance does not create an asset rvith an alternatir.e use to the Companv and the endrr, has
an enforceable right ro pa\-ment for perfcrrmance complered ro date.

For performance obligations rvhere anl of the abore conditions are lrot mer, re\-enue rs recognised at the point 'rtime at rvhich the performance obligation is satisFred.

LH
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Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on various conditions as included in rhe
contracts with customers.

Point of Time:

Reue nue fmm rca/-e$ate prujefit

Revenue is recognised at the Pornt rn Time w.r.t. sale of real estate units, including land, plots, apartments, commercial
units, de'urlopment rights including development agreements as and when the control passes on to the customer.

Intwmental cvtt o_f obtaining ilntract

The incremental cost of obtaining a contract with a customer is recognised as an asset if Company expecrs to recover
those costs subiect to other conditions of the standard are met. These costs are charged to statement of profit and
loss in accordance with the transfer of the properry to the customer.

Over a pedod of time:

Revenue is recognised over period of time for following stream of re*enues:

Rwe na e Jrum Co-deue lopme nt ploj e ctr

Co-derrclopment projects where the Company is acting as contractor, revenue is recognised in accordance with the
terms of the co-developer agreements. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an alternative use for the
Company and the Companv has an enforceable nght to pa1'ment. The estimated proiect cost includes consrrucrion
cost, development and construction material. internal development cost, external development charges, borrowing
cost and overheads ofsuch project.

The estimates of the saleable ar.ea and costs are revierved penodicallv and effect of any changes in such estimates is
recognized in the penod such changes are determined. Horvever, when the total proiect cost is estimated to exceed
total re\.enues from the project, the loss is recognized rmmediatelv.

C o n ilnt ct io n a n d Ji t-ou t pmje cts

Construction and Et-out proiects where the Companr is actirrg as contractor, revenue is recognised in accordance
rvith the rerms o[ the construcuon agreements. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an alternatir.e use
and the Companv has an enforceable right to pal'ment. The estimared project cost includes construcrion cosr,
development and construction material and overheads of such proiect.

I'he Compan\r uses cost based rnput method for measuring progress for performance obligation satisfied o.r.er rime.
Under this method, the Companv recognises revenue in proportion ro rhe actual proiect cost incuffed as against the
total estimated proiect cost. The management rer-iervs and rer-ises its measure of progress periodicallr- and irre
considered as change in estimates and accordingh-. the eftect of sucl'r changes irr estimates is recognised prospectir-eiy
in dre period in rvhich such changes are detennined. llorver-er, rvhen the total project cost is estimated to exceed
totai revenues from the proiect, rhe loss is recognized irnmediatelr..

*
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As the outcome of the contracts cannot be measured reLablt. during the early stages o[ the project, contract revenue
is recogmsed onh' to the extent of costs incurred in the statement of profit and loss.

Rent,t/ and llaintenan;e inu.ome

Rer''enue in respect of rental and maintenance sen'ices is recogrused on an accrual basis, rn accordance with the terms
of the respective contract as and when the Companv satisfies perforrnance obLgadons by delivering the sen ices as
per contractual agreed terms.

Other operating intone

Income from forfeirure of properties and interest from banlis and customers under agreements to sell is accounted
for on an accrual basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtfirl.

Volume rebates and eady payment rebates

The Companv pror.ides mor-e in rebates/ earlr payment rebates/ down pavment rebates to the customers. Rebates
are offset agarnst amounts payable br the customer and revenue to be recognised. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future rebates, the Companr esrimates the expectled value of rebates that are ;ikely
to be incurred in furure and recognises the re\.enue netof rebates and recogruses rhe refund liability for expected
furure rebates.

iii. Contract balances
Contracl arett

A contract asset is the right to considerarion in exchange for goods or sen'ices transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs b,v transferring goods or services to a customer before the custorner pays consideration or before
pa)'ment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receiuable

A receivable rePresents the Companv's right to an amouot of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passa€ie
of ume is requred before palment of the consideradon is due). Refer to accounting pohcies of financial assers in
sectron 2.2(u) Financial insruments - rnrual recognrtion and subsequent measurement.

Contrat /iabilitie

A contract liabilrn'is the oblgation to transter goods or sen-ices ro a customer for rvhich the Cornpan), has receir-ed
consideration (or an amount of considerarion is due) trom the customer. Ii a customer pays consideratlon betbre the
Companr ratrsfers gortd*s 61 sen-ices ro the customer. a contract liabdrn- is recognised rvhen the parmer-rt is marle .r
the patnrent is due (\'lucherer is c;u'Ler). (-orrtract habilines are recotlrxsed as rerenue r,,,he6 the C.mpau.pertir',s
r.urder the contract

k) Inventories

*



Bteeze Constructions private Limited
CIN: U45201D12005PT Cl3S47 6

Regd Office Addtess: lEJhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarchZ02S

o Land and plots other than area ransferred to constructed properties at the cofiunencement of construction are valuedat lower of cost/as re-valued on conversion to .to.k and net realisable value. Cost includes land (including
development rights and land under agreement to purchase) acqursition cost, borrorving cost if inventorisation criteria
are met' estimated internal development costs and external derrelopment charges a.rd o"ther drrectly amributable costs.

o Construction work-in-progress of constructed properues other than Special Economic Zone (S1Z)projects rncludes
the cost of land (indudgg development .rghts a"d hnd under agreemenrs to puchase), iotemal development cosrs,
e-xtemal development charges, construction costs, overheads, 

"borrowing 
.or, if inventorisauon cnteria are met,

development/ construction materials and is valued ar lo,wer of cost/estimlted cost and net realisable value.

o Der"elopment rights represent amount pard under agreement to pwchase land/development rights and borrowing
cost iocurred bv the ComPant'to acquhe irrevocableLd exclusi.'e licenses/developm..rt rghts ii the identrfied land
and constructed properties, the acqusition of v-hich is either completed or is ar 

"n 
,dorrrr."d stage. These are r.alued

at lorver of cost and net realisable value.

o Construction,/ds1'glepment material is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises of purchase
price and other costs inctured rn bnnging the inventories to their present location and cond.ition.

o Stocks for maintenance facilities (including stores and spares) are valued ar cost or ner realisable value, whichever is
lower.

Cost is determrned on veighted-average basis.

Net realisable value rs the esumated selLng price rn the ordinarr. course of business less estimated costs of compleuon
and estimated costs necessar\,' to make the sale.

l)Earnings per share

Basic earmngs per share is calculated br dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equirr shareholders
(after deductrng attributable taxes) bl the u'eighted a\,-erage number of equin shares ourstanding during the penod.
The weighted average number of equrtl' shares outstanding during the penod is adiusted for er.ents as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue, share spLit, and reverse share split (consolidauon of shares) that have changed the
number of equrn' shares outstandtng, rvithout a corresponding change rn resources.

For the purpose of calculaung drluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable ro equrn.
shareholders and the rverghted a\-erage oumber of shares ourstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equifi- shares.

m)Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standatds
The Companr applied for the hrst-time certain standards and amendmenrs, which are efttctir-e tbr annual periods
begrnrung on or after 1 :\pril 202-l' but do not ha'e a material lmpact on the standalone flnancial sraremenrs o[ rhe
Companr'.

{/c
*tJ
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Ind AS I l6: ltas* - The NICA nodfied the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
2024' which amended Ind AS 116, l,eases, r,vith respect to kase Uabfity in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabiJitl' arisrng in a sale and leaseback
transaction, to ensure the sellerlessee does not recognise ant- arnount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains' The amendment is effecdve for annual reporting periods beginning on or after I Apnl 2024 and must
be applied retrospectivelY to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of rnitial application of Ind
AS 116,

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company during the vear.

Ind AS I 1 7: Insranu - The Ntinistry of Colporate Affairs (NtC,\) noufied the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide
notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indran Accountiog Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024,
wluch is effecti'e from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensi,"'e new accounting standard for insurance contracts co'ering
recognition and measurement, Presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS l0-l Insurance Conrracrs.
Ind AS 117 applies to all fiPes of insurance contracts, regardless of the 6pe of entities that issue rhem as rvell as to
certain gllarantees and financial instruments rvith discretionafi, parucipation fearures; a fen, scope exceptrons will
apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by

' A specific adaptation for contracts w'irh direct participation fearwes (the variable fee approach); and

' A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for shon-duration contracrs.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone financial statemenrs of the Companl'during the year.

New and amended standards, not yet effective

There are no standards that are ootihed and not vet effective as on the date.

Significant management iudgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparadon of the Companr''s financial statemenrs requires management to make iudgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported arnounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilrties, and the related disclosures.

Signifi cant management iudgements

The follorvrng are srgnificant management iudgements rn app\'ing the accounting policies of the Compan\, rhar ha*e
the most srgniFrcant effect on the staodalone financiar statements.

Rengnition o-[ de/emd tax anel.t - The exre nt to rvhich deferred tax assers can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probabilin-of rhe futtue tasable rncome asarnst n'luch the deferred rar assets can be ,u]ized.

Eru/ttatirtn olindisttlttn.lbr inpainrunl of at-tclt - I-he er-aluation of apphcabilin- of indicators of impru.menr of assets
requtres assessment of several esternal and tnternal factors rvhr.ch could result in deterioration of reco'erable amount
of the assets.

-rt
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Claxfitation qf kuxi - The Companv enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is b"..d o., an assessment of se.r.eral factors, including, butnot limited to, transfer of orvnership of leased asset at end of iease term, lessee's opuon to purchase and estimated
certainn- of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's .conomic lif., proportion of present 

'alueof minimum lease parments to farr value of leased asset and extent of speciaLzed nature of the leasecl asset.

Detemining the /eate terru of t'ontracb wit'h reneaal ant{ temtination optiou (Company as lessee)- The Companl. determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an opuon to extend the
lease if it is reasonablv certain to be exercised, or an'\, periods covered bv an option to rerminate the lease, if it is
reasonablr' certain not to be exercised. The Companv has several lease contracts that rnclude extension and
termination options' The Company apphes iudgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certarn rvhether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renerval or termination. After the commencement dare, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a signihcant event or change in circumstances rhar is uirhin its control and affects its abiiiq.
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g. construction of significant leasehold
impror.emenrs or significanr cusromrsation to the leased asset).

Impainztent of-financial awlr - At each balance sheet date. based on histoncal default rates obseri,ed over expected li[e,
the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Prodtiou - At each balance sheet date basis the managemenr judgment, changes in fhcts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requir66ent of pror-tsions against the outstanding contingent liabiliues. Holvel-er, the actual
furure outcome mav be different from rhis judgement.

Reuenue-f)vm L'()ttttuL'lr' wiil-t ol'rtomer-s- The Companr- has applied iudgements that sigruficantlv affect rhe determrnatron of
the amount and timing of re'enue from contracts wrth customers.

Significant estimates

The kel' assumptions concerning the furure and other ker- sources of estrmatior uricerrarnh- at rhe reportmg date,
that have a signitrcant risk of causing a material adjustment ro rhe carn'ing amounrs of assets and liabilities, are
described belorv' The Compant' based its assumptrons and estimates on parameters available s,he1 the standalone
financial statements were prepared. Exrsting circumstances and assumptions about ftrture developments, ho'u-er,er.
mav change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are belond the control of the Companr.. Such
changes are reflected in the assumpdons rvhen ther occur.

Xel realiiub/e utt/ue o-f inunlnry -The determination of net realisable r.alue of inventon' invoh'es estimares based on
prevai-ling market conditiorrs. currerlt prices aud expected date of commencemenr and completior.r of the proiecq rhe
estimated furure selling price. cost ro complete proiects and selling cost. -I'he 

Companr- also rnr-oh-es specialist to
perform r-aluadons of inr-entories, n.herer-er re<1r.rired.

('rfu1 /iw ol defre;ialt/ef unor/i.r,tb/e Lt.ilet.r Nla6agement rer-ie1,s its estimate oI rhe usetul lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on rhe expected utilin- of rhe asscrs. L. ncertar.tres ir.r
these estlmates relare to technical and economrc obsolescence that mar-change the utilitr.of assets.

/,\
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l1a/uution o-f inrcttmenl prLperr'- Investment properq'is stated at cosr. Hov'elrr, as per Ind AS -10 .Inr-estment properq.,
there is a re<luirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Companv engaged rndependent r.aluation
specialism to determine the farr value of its ul'estment propern' as at reporting date. The determi,ation of the fair
value of rnvestment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash florvs from the assets (such as lettings,
funlre reYenue streams! capital r-alues of fi-rrures and fitungs, an.r- environmental matters and the overall ,epai, ana
conditron of the properfi) and discount rates applicable to those assers. In addrtion, der.elopment risks lsuch as
construction and lerdng risk) are also taken rnto consideration rvhen determrmng the fair value of the properties
under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Inpaitzent of Pruperl1 plant equipment, I nuestrzent propertiet and CW/IP - Impairment exists when the carning value o[ an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, rvhich is the higher of its far value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from rhe
budgets' The recoYerable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as rvell as the expected
furure cash-inflorvs and the gros.th rate used.

Defned beneJit ob/tgttion (DBo1- lrlanagement's estimare of the DBo is based on a number of undelying assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortaliE, discount rate and anticipation of future salan' incteases. Variation in
these assumptions mat' sigruficantlv rmpact the DBO arnount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair aa/ue mearilremen! divlorurw - trIanagement applies valuation techniques (includrng but not limited to the use of
dhqurdrn discount otr investments) to determine the fau value of financial irrrt**.ri, (rvhere active market quotes
are not aYailable). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consisrent with horv market participants rvould
price the instrument.

['a/uatirtn rl inueimenl in iabtidiaietjoinl uenlarct and ,trnriate.r -lnvesmenrs in subsidiaries, joint venrures and associates
are carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators of imparrment of such
investments' Thus requues assessment o[ several external and internal factor including capitalisati.on rate, kev
assumptron used in discounted cash tlorr' models (such as revenue grorr"th, unit price and discount rates) o. .a1..
comparison method rvhich mat' affect the carn ing ralue of investments in subsidianes, ioint venrures and associates.

(thit :pace has been intentional/1 ht b/aak)

<,
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3. PROPERTY, PI.ANT AND EQUIPMENT

in lakhs

Gross Carrying Value
As at 1 April2024 10,377.21
Addition during the veat

Deletion during the vear

As at 31M:arch2025 10,377,21
Accumulated

As at 1 Apnl2024
Addition during the l'ear
Deletion during the vear

As at 3l ls.f:arch?,025

Net block
As at 1 Apdl2024 10,377.21
As at 31March2025 10,377.21

ln

Gross Carrying Value
As at 1 Apol2023 10,377.27
Addition during the vear

Deletion during the year

As at 31Ma;tch20?A 10,377.21
Accumulated depreciation/

As at 1 Apil2023
,\ddition during the vear

Deletion during the rear
As at 31Match2024

Net block
As at 1 Apil2023 10,377.21
As at 31March2024 10,377.21

(Th* ryace bat beer inkntionallj' left bknk)

*
CHARTERED

*

Frcehold Land

Paticuhrr Fleehold Land

I
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Notes to the Financial Satements for the year ended 31 March 2025

4. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS*
Project Development Exp
lnterest Capiralised

lf,ase rent
Other Government dues

615.63

3,311.27

972.19

224.89

615.63

3,3t1.27

972.11)

224.89

5.123.98 5,123.98
schedule as on 2025

- Projects in progress

- Proiects tcmporuily' suspendcd
5,1 23.98 5,r 23.98

Work-in as on 3l March2024

project in tuturc.

S. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Securin Deposits

1.50

6. NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
.\dvance Income Tax 0.05 0.21

0.05 0.21

7. CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS
Balances rvith Banks

-[n currenl account

-Deposits rvith maturin ftrr less than 3 months

15.36

1.50

l.l6
A.n

4.08

4.08

8. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

-\dvanccs recovcrirblc in kind fcrr r aluc trr be rcccir ed

Prepaid expcnses

Ihlancc urrh statul()s rurh,rritrcs
-(irnsrdered doubttul.

8.96

177.14 104.57

3l 8.3()

504.40 104.57

Less: A-Uonance on doubtful assers (3r8.30)

186.10 104.57

I()()('i pr()tisl(,lt against rhe reinsratcrl rmount.

(fbis qa,z bat ben intentioaa$, hft blaak)

t*

Projccts in progress

Proiccts temporarilv suspended 5,123.98 5,123.98

Ao at 31 Merch
z},25

Particulan
x:u

As et31

Perticulars Lcrc rfira I year 1-2 vcare 23 veers Morc rha- t y13r" Totel

Perricuhre Lee* thenl ycer l-2 veere ?-3wrrs Morc' ,3ycare Toal

1.50 1.50
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9. EQUITY
EQUITYSHARE CAPITAL
(A) Authorised, Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value pet share

Authorised Capital
15,00,00,000 (prerious year - 15,00,00,000) Equiry* Shares oft t0/- each

Issued , subscribed and paid up share capital
15,00,00,000 (previous vear - 15,00,00,000) Equity Shares of { 10/- each fully paid up

I 5,000 I 5,r)( ){)

15,000 15,000

15,000 15.000

15,000 15,000

of numbers of shares and at the of the

Equity Shares

At the begnrung of the year

Issued during the vear
At the end of the year

No. ofshares

15,00,m,Ofi)

No. of shares

15,00,00,000

ls.00.00.000

and restrictions to various of shares:

The companv has onlv one of equitv shares a par value of t 10 per holder of equitv shares is
entided to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equitl shares rvrll be entided to
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
proponion to the number of equiry shares held bv the shareholders.

preferential amounts. The distribution witl be in

Fiquin

details of of Promoters :

DLF Limited (Flolding Company) along with its 6 nominees Eq-ty 15,00,m,000 1tn.000. NiI

details of the

DLF Umited (Holding Company) along with irs 6 nominees 100 ilrI, ,, NilEqr.).*

mote than syo sheres:

15,00,00,000

Shares in the held shareholder

DLF Limited (Flolding Company) along rvith its 6 nominees 15,00,00,000 1(Xl.00o o

*

As.t3lltderch
fi25

As et 3l trLrch
mu

Perticuhn

15.00.00.000

Ar et3l Merch
WB

As at3tllderch
wu

Peniculers

ead repaymcnt
Type ofeharcc

(m
rttrchcd tD th€ dess ofrf,rrcs.

restrictiong

No. of ehercs Hdin
qstcgttcbyhddtog

comP.oy

Pencentagc clrengc
during the yeet

Nrmcof theehrrltoHer Cleesoflhrci Percentege ofeheres
hdd

No. of r&ercg hdd in
.grcgrte by hoiili[g

cmPary

Per,centagc cfrengc
during rte ycrr

Nemc of thc rherchoHer Clese of sh{lcr PcccnAgc ofsheres
held

No of shrres h.ld in
tbcompeny

Perce,nage of charer
held

Nrme of thc shereholdct
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10. BORROWINGS
- Unsecured Loans from related parties

-from DLIi Home Detelopers Limited*

*tepayable on demand and carties an interest tate of 8.750 0 (N{arch 31, 2024: 8150 o)

11. TRADE PAYABLES

-'lirtal outstanding dues of micrr) cnterpriscs and small entcrpriscs

-Iirtll outstanding dues of crcdit()rs ()ther than micro cnterldscs and small entcrpri,scs

2,773.00 1,500.00

2.773.00 1,s00.00

25.77

0.22
13.91

0.41

25.99 14.38
Trade March 2025

Undisputed dues

-NISL{E- Not due 1.69 1.69
-ivfSlvlE- Due 12.47 1 1.61 24.08
- Others 0.22 o.22
Disputed dues
- NISNIE

- Others

Trade schedule as at 31 March 2024

12. OTHER FINANCI.AL LIABILITIES
Interest accrued +

Intetest othets

*Refer note no. 23

T}. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statuton dues pavable

14. CURRENT TAX LTABTLTTTES (NET)
Prrxision for income tax

119.54 101.13

135.30

179.54 236.43

6.+-1 265.37

6.44 265.37

0.13

0.13

(Tbis Eare has beet inhilnonalb At bhrrk)

CHAI IiERE,D

*

Undisputed dues

-lvISNIfa- Not due 1.69 7.69
-NISNII'l- I)ue 0.67 17.61 12.28

Others 0.+1 0.41
Disputed dues

IIS\II,]
Others

* ACCOU

Ae erSlMrrch
*?s

As at 3l Merch
20?l

Particuhrs

Pfiticulers fuca thri Iycet 1-2ycen ?-r,'!ryl TotalMore thaa3yeet*

Particohrt trcs th-a lycnr l-2ycerrs ?-3yan* Morc th"- 3 yc{s 
I

Totd
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INCOME
I ntcrcst incornc on fircd dcposits
I rrcl.rirnt.d lrrl.rrrct ,u:d (\ccss prr)\'isl(,rr srittt,rr oii

16. FINANCE COST
Ioterest on delnl in pavmcnt of tirxes

Inerest on l)ebenturcs

I nterest r>n borrorving

lntcrcst others

17. OTHER EXPENSES
Ground rent

Securit charges

Fees and taxes

Insurance

Legal & Professional Iixpenses

.\mounts written off
Allowancc ftrr expected credit loss

Repair & N{aintairrence

l\liscellaneous expenses

Payment to Audito.:
-.\uditor's remuneration

-C)ther services

- GSl'

18. TAX EXPENSES
(lurrerrt vear'l'ax .\djtrstments

Flarlier vear'fax Ad justments

Income tax expense reported in the statemcnt of profit and loss

19. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
l)rot-rt/(l ,oss) tirr thc rclr cndtd 3l \larclr 2025

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders
'lirtal rturnbcr of ctluitv shirrrs ()utstarlding at thc beginning ofthc rear
.\dd: I\rtcntial lrquitr.Sharcs in (-orrrptrlsorilt (.onvertil>lc t)cbcnturcs ((.(.1)s)
'lirtll rttrmbcr oI ctlrrin slr:rrcs orrtstandirrg irt thc cnd of thc le:rr

\\'cightcd ;rvcrirgc nriml)cr oi crluin shares

0.51 0.02

0.22

0.51 0.24

2.62

2.26

197.23

2.26

1 10.10

1 35.30

202.11 247.66

254.69

11.57

278.62

0.04

2.64

0.21

56.37

68.70

286.65

1t.14

213.56

9.1,3

0.80

r.38

0.25

1.38

0.06

0.25

674.53 522.91

0.1 3

0.01 0.1,2

0.14 0.12

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accourting profit multiplied by India's domestic tirx rate for March 31,2025 and March 31, m24
Accounting Profit before income tax (826.13) (770.33)
Tax impact on IND .\S adiustment which will nerrer be allowed
-I'axable Profit/(Loss) under tax la\ys (876.13) (770.33)
Expenses allowed B'16.G4 1i0.33
Net taxable profit under tax laws 0.51

i\t countn''s statuton'inc<rme tax rate <rf 25.1687o. 25.1689h 25.168ok
Current t.rx expense 0.13 0.00
[)eferred Tax .\ssets as pcr last audited financials

Deterred'I'ax .\sscts recomputcd

Adjustment in respect ol current income tax of previous vears 0.01 0.12
Total Tax Expense 0.14 O.l2
Income ta>. expense in Profrt & Loss Account 0.1.1 O.l2
Net Difference

\txnirral virltrc o[ctpritv sharc (t)
Basic earnings per equity share ({)
\\'cightctl irvcmsc nurrbcr oictlLrin shrrcs uscd r() c(,nrlutc
\onrinal valuc ofcquin'sharc ({)
Diluted eamings per equity share (t)

(876.27

(876.27)

15,00,00,000

22,60,40,000

37,60,40,000

37,60,40,000

l0
(0.23)

37.60.-+0.00c)

l0
(0.23)

F70.45)
(770.45)

15,00,00,000

22,60,40,000

37,60,40,000

37,60,40,000

t0
(0.20)

37,60,.10,000

l0
(0.20)

carrllngs

Paticulars

15.

rhcyearended Forrhcycar
31 Manch 2025 SlMatch2U2A
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(t in lakhs)
20. Ratio for the ended 31 Match2025

(a) Current ratio 0.07 0.05 lncrease in BorrowinE;
(b) Debt-e<;uit1' ratio 0.22 0.1 1 lncrease in Borrowings
(c) l)ebt scrvicc covcrage rati() -3.33 0.00 Reduction in Finance Cost
(d) Return on equiq ratio -0.06 -0.05 Reduction in Finance Cost
(e) Inventon rurn<-x'er ratio \.\ N.-\ N.\
(0 Trade receivable tumover ratio \.\ NA NA
G) "l'rade pavable turnover ratio \.\ N,\ NA
(h) Net capital turnover ratio N.\ N:\ NA
(r) Net profit ratio NA N;\ NA
fi) Return on capital emploved -0.05 -0.04 Reduction in Finance Cost
(k) Return on investment NA NA NA

(4, Cutrent Ratio Current Assets + Current Liabiliw

(b) Debt/Equin' Ratio Total Debt - Total Equity
(.) Debt Service Coverage Ratio [.iarnings before exccptional items, Interesr and Tax + [iinance (]ost + Principal

Repal'ments madc during the period for oon-currcnt borrowings (including current
maturities)l

(d) Return on equity ratio Net Earnings / Shareholders' Equity
(.) Inveotory tumover Cost of land, plots, developmenr rights, constructed properties and others =

Average Inventories
(0 'l'rade receivable turnover ratio Revcnue t-r<lm oPerations + .tverage Trade Receivables

G) Trade paJzble tumover ratio (iost ofland, plots, dcvclopmcnt rights, construcred pr()perties and othcrs +

.\verage accounts par.able

(h) Net capital rurnover ratio Total Sales + Total EquiT
(,) Net profit ratio Net Profit after Tax + Revenue from operations

0 Rerurn on capital emploved EBIT+ Total Equiw
(li) Return on inr,estment Net retum on Investment + Cost of Investment

S. No. Ratioc For the year en&d
SlMarch?0,?5

For the ycer ended
3ll$.rchW2/ Explenatioa

S. No. Ratioe Formule
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the verr ended 3l M:rch 2025

21 Financial Instruments

i) Fair values hiemrchv

signiFrcant input to the measuremenr as f<rllou,s:

kvel l: Quoted pnce (unadjusted) in actire muket for the financial instrumenr

Lrvel 2: input other than qu()ted prices included vithin level I that re obsen'able for rhe assets or liabilities, either directlv or indirectlv
level 3: Unobsen'able inputs for the assets or liabilities

ii) Financial essets and liabilities measured at fair value - recuring fair value

tn

iii) Valuation Technique used to detemine fair value

22 Risk management

A) Credit risk

into its credit risk controls.

B) Uquidity risk

meet obligations s'hen due. f)ue to the nature of the business, the Companr mainrains flesibrn in funding bv mairnining availabilin undcr commtted faciLities.

of thr mrkct in s hiclr rhe endn operares.

Maturities of financiel liabilities

The tables belorv analvse the Companr's financial liabilities into relcrant maturi$'b[oupings based on their contractual maturiues.

C) Merkct Risk

a) Interest Rate Risk
i) Liebilities

funre cash 0os,s *'ill fluctuate because of a change in mrket intuest mtes.
ii) Assets

will fluctuate because of a change in mruket interest rates.

Finencial Assets

Cah and cash equivalents Level 3 15.36 15.36 +.08 4.08
Other bank balances Level 3
()ther hnancial assets kvel 3 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
Total financial assets 16.86 16.86 5.58 5.58
Fiqencid Liabilities
Borowings lrvel 3 2.-:3.(X) 2.,- t-3.00 1,500.00 I,500.00
Trade oavables hvel 3 25.99 25.99 1,1.-38

'14.3u

C)ther finanoal liabrhrcs ktel -3 1i9.54 179.54 236.43 236.13
Total financial liabilities 2,978.53 2,97E.53 r,750.81 1,750.81

Borovings including interest

Non-derivatives

accrued

Trade pavable TI
2,952.5+

25.99
Total 2,978.s3J 2,978.53

Non-derivatives
Borrorvings tncluding intcresr
accrued
'l'rade pal,ablc

l.-16.+3

I +..1It

I,t36.+.3

1.1.3t1

Total 1.750.81 -l 1,750.81

CIIARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

flhit

*

Prrticdrrs Idd ,lrlll[rrchZ]24
CrmireVrhp FeirVdre CrmimYeha Frir Vdua

3l Mrrch Zl25 Lcs 6.0 lyc.r L5ycer Morc - -n5lrcen Toel

3lMercf,Z}21 Lcs thn Iycer l-5 ycan Morc dEi llyca6 Totrl



Brcczc Coosmcaio[ Pri%E LiEiEd
CIN: U{5301DL2005PTC13il76

n dOffrcc.tddress:1l-:,lhandovalanExm.NrazCincmaCompler,Nes.Ddhi-11005i
Noc6 o thc Fidancirl Sutcmcor for tic yc.r codcd 3t Mrrch 2OZ5

23 krlGd Pany DilclosuEs

htomanotr (quiftd b lE di$ckxcd uder Ld tu X d 'klrEd PS. D3clGua3i

e) N.mc .!d ortu.c ofrcl2riorBhip sirt rc!.rd ptfri.rl

Rcletiooship
(i) Ultunate Pareilt Comp,urt :

(ii) Prrent Cornpuv:

(iii) l.ellow Subsidi?r!- Compmy :

u

Ndc or&. Ehcd pGic.
Reidher lnv6l'M6 & AgwB PdnE tjmiEd
DLF LimiEd

DU: Hlre DevdopeB Umici
Dl,F Luury Hlrc LimiEd

(l in hkhs)

The mna8ffi ha idatifrcd qatpdrc s{rir:tr tuw povirod Boods sd s'lB o dr C@p.dy a.d which qudi$ un&r dr definirim of mic@, sull $d rEdim oerptis, as dc6rEd uder lvtcs, Seil

Gpet Nlicm, Smll :ud \ledim qrerprises nr

(bmpiury.

treen summrized in Note - 21.

n

28

D

In drc opinim ol de Boad of Dffi ffit 8ets, IMG drd .d@ h.E i vrlE 6 qlialih io the ordinaty w of hEi|B .r lst cqud b da .m6t at wtich dE, .c raed i{ dE B6lre StEt
ard povisim fot all lnm liabtritks taw bsr ode .

TtE Compmy hG usd a &i!d Ffiy opeqEd amtitS eftwe fo! @iotrining iB b@[t of rrut zd dut $€ .udir @it fqtua of the mid oftmc w oaHs, ed oFnr€d druglout rhc yur fu zll
elc@t mdi@ t@ded in dE sftmE dd dE @tpdy pewed tfie audit mil io full dndire eidl dle equi(ffis of ctim 128(5) of dc Coopeaix 4d,2013, id Gpd;f dr fmid yeer
mded Meid ll, 2025. Hmt, in aspctof drc 6leid ,ts srd.d 

^{a!d! 
31,2024, M.nagetBt is d in poBsib of Secke O€misarim Coorols tepoa 6(ft q?e ? repofr) b deremire wfurher thc

cquirerms of rbo* Rule ha beo mt

EstimEd mut of conm6 @ining o be erdEd on epiul 2@ut md rct porid€d for
(ret of adqresl

Nil Nil

OtherColmitIrgN Nil Nit
C!iltirsot liibiliN Nil Nil

(i) The principal tumunt md dE inte$t due dre@n minhg upaid m uy supplie. d ar dE end of ach ecouting y@r 25.11 13.97

0i) fic a@ut of int@t paid by the bu}Er in m of satio 16 of dc Micrc, Srell rd trtedim EnBrlEiss DeveloFmt Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), al68
widr drc ammt of dE payffir mde E dE rupplie bertrd drc appointd d.y during ech mmting prc
(if de arcut of ilreesr due dd Pay.ble for dre period of delav in mking payrmt ((tich h6 bcro peid bur bepnd dE xppirmd drv duriog thc par)
but widrcur addilg dre ilrerest sp€ifrc{ urder drc l\tico, Small ud l{edium Enrcryris Derelopnmt .\cr, 30061

(rv) dr lmmt of inE6r aerued md emining 6paid .t &e 6d of *h mconting yo! and

(\) dt amut of furdu intest twhing due md paFlre evd in dE srceding vea6, unril such darc rvh€n dE intercr dues abore are rcrualty paid o
dt sm.ll dttsrpris, for $e purpo* of disallowce of a deductible erpendinre un&r sectiqr 23 of dre Lticrc, SrkJl md l\tedium Elmrpriscs

CHARTERED
ACCOUNIANIS

25

p*qlsf.:$*.ths.,&q,!l-{Ltis{

$ii.rgiisr-,M1!.eE
ll riL:b}t,:'i:.j=

l$,.t!3l:!{-aiirE
.n,]r], 202,{'-i,ir-,iti

e E!J1il!,!.9,t1
.......=2tt29' ' :&$l.f l-"r""cr",,&

:::r:+ i i ro2lti,r.jr::

r7q il (rt I1

F;(iciltdi Ar la rl tua.d,
2073

& rtJINdcb,

llE
ILrr,| retiori qfi 

S.Ei 
rrlrril*if

A, rt 3l March,
:l:l: met :

&.!!.3r:!&-i-a!;
:rr.:i1;:.2024::::::::=

iU.ilJIMqrclr
:i;..:ZitTSt'! ,:

Jtsi* 3llr-{.{'tb
Lllt 2025. :..

As at3l *t{ichrl
rlt':ioz{.,:..i

Nil \il

fl"'diurir-li j
Ar!t_I! M4rs!{



Audit fees 1.3tt 1.38
()thers 0..31 (,.25

Total 1.69 1.63

30

Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45201DL2005FTC135476

Regd Officc Address: lE Jhandewalan Extension, Neaz Cineme Complex, New Delhi - 110055
Notes to the Financial Statements for thc vear ended 3l March 2025

to auditore m

'l'axcs, as pcr sectirxr I -33 of (.ompanies .\ct, 20I 1 read urth rules madc thcrcunder.

3r

32

Income

33

Segment Reponing

the onlr reportable business segment. 'I'he companv is operating onlv in tndia and there is no other signiEcant geogpphical segment.'!

Other statutory infonnation for the year ended Mercb3l,?.0?5 zlnd March 31,2024

'fransactions prohibirion) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) 'I'he (iompany do not have anv Emsactions vith companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies -lct, 2013.

(iri) The Oompany do not have anv chrges or satisfaction u'hich is let to be registered uith Registru of Compmies bel.ond the statutory period.

(iv) 1'he Company have nor traded or invested in Crypto Cunencv or Virtual Currencv during the Frnmcial yeru.

Intemediary shall:

(a) dkecdv or indirecdv lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in anr manner l'ha*oever bv or on behalf of the Company (Jlumate Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide anv guarantee, securitr or the like to or on behalf of rhe Ulumate Beneficiries.

(vi) The Compmv has not received my fnd fiom anv person(s) or endr(ies), includrng foreign enunes (Funding Part)-) with the understanding (rvhether recorded in *riting or
othenvise) that the Companv shall:

(a) drecdv or indirecdy lend or invest in other persons or entities identiEed in any mmner u'hats(xrer by or on behalf of the Funding Puty (Ultimate Bene6ciuies); or

(b) provide any guarantee, secudtv or the like on beha.lf of the Ulumate }lenefioanes.

the [ncome-tar ]\ct, I 96 I (such as, seuch or sufl-cv ()r an\ other) rcler-ant provisions of rhc lncome-tax .lct, I 9(r I .

guidelines on wilful defaulters issued bv the Resen'e Bank of India.

l,n1,grs) Rulcr. 20 I I irom the date oI their implcmcntaoon.

34

date.

(fhi spuz hu lxet iztenrionully lcJi bbnk)

Peniculrre Ar et3l Mrrch
mzs

Aset3ll[.rrrh
x\r
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Breeze Constructions Private Limited
CI N : U45201D ll;0/i,SPT C13547 6

Regd Office Address: 1E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi - 110055

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Capital Management

pror,ide adcquate retunt t() sharcholders through continuing growth.

The Companv manages its capital structure and makes adiustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenaots. The funding requirement is met throirgh a mixture of equiry, internal accruals, long term borrowings and short term borrowings. The C<impanv
monitors capifal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

In order to achieve this overall obiective, the Compaoy's capital managemeot, amoflgst other things, airns to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowiogs that define capital structure requirements.

ln

K Figures o[previous have been regrouped/recasted where ever considered necessarv to make them comparable with that ofcurrent vear,

37 Financial figures has been rounded oflfto the nearest in Lakhs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Breeze Constructions Private Limited

_d.*"
(Director)

DIN :08394289

Umesh Chan&a Agarwal
(Director)

DIN : 08144980

Sanjeev Adya
(Chief Irinancial Offi cer)

Place: Gurugram
Date 21.04.25

Debt 2,713.00 r,500.00

Cash & bank balances 15.36 4.08

Net debt 2,757.64 1,495.92

Total equity 12,719.10 13,595.37

Debt/Equity o.22 0.11

CI"IARIERED

krYrtY
Sneh MahaiM

(Companv SecretarJ)

Particrilfis 31stM.rchAI25 3lstM.rch ZPI


